
WINDHAM PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

WINDHAM, CT 

REGULAR MEETING 

May 26, 2016 MINUTES 

I )  Call to Order: The Windham Planning & Zoning Commission held its meeting on May 26, 2016 in the 2nd 

Floor Conference Room, Town Hall.  Chair Paula Stahl called the meeting to order at 7:03 P.M.  Members 

present were Jean Chaine, Clary Lary, Michael Graff,  and Paula Stahl.  Also present were Town Planner 

James Finger and ZEO Matthew Vertefeuille. 

II ) Approval of Minutes 

The minutes of April 28, 2016 were approved on a motion made by Michael Graff and seconded by 

Claire Lary.  The motion carried unanimously. 

Action on the minutes of May 12, 2016 was deferred until the next meeting. 

III ) Continuation of public hearing - Steven Edelman, Gilead Enterprises, 96 Back Road & 40-44 Old 

Brooklyn Turnpike - application for a Special Permit for earth excavation in accordance with Section 75.   

Commissioner Jean Chaine recused himself from participating on this application. 

Chair Paula Stahl distributed a list of possible conditions of approval to consider if the Commission were 

to act favorably on this application.  The permit will be for one year, renewable by the Commission, she 

said.  Operations are permitted, excluding holidays observed by Windham Town Hall.  Mr. Edelman 

reviewed and commented on the proposed conditions.  

A general discussion ensued regarding the proposed conditions. Chair Stahl responded to questions and 

comments made by Mr. Edelman. 

He referred to  item 1 and 3.  Item 1.  Add comply with Zoning Regulations on gravel operations.  Item 3 

deals with hours of operation and noise.  

Chair Stahl said one of the things that the Commission focuses on is the impact to neighbors.  She said 

these are the same conditions we give to everyone who applies for a Special Permit for earth 

excavation. 

Mr. Edelman then referred to the proposed hours of operation. He said adhering to the specified hours 

would be a major problem.  Businesses do not work  that way, he said.  The proposed conditions would 

not makeit possible to operate thebusiness effectively. Mr. Edelman then referred to crushing.  Crushing 

operation dates and hours shall be approved by the ZEO to occur at a time with the least disturbance to 

the neighbors.  Reasonable excavation to bury large stones in lieu of crushing is permitted with ZEO 

approval.  Mr. Edelman said   this phase of the operation is very expensive so we need to have adequate 

time.  He said the Commission could set the hours for crushing, and suggested the times of 7:00 AM to 

5:00 P.M.   He said this type  of operation is market driven so they would like to be able to complete the 

operation as soon as possible.  



Chair Stahl said the commission is concerned with three things: the hours of operation, closing out the 

site and a rapid remediation. 

Mr. Edelman said an issue was raised with the safety of children in the neighborhood.  He said there are 

very few children in the neighborhood. 

Chair Stahl opened the meeting for public comments: 

 1) James Randall , P.O. Box 348, Windham, CT offered the following suggestions: Restrict the hauling 

hours starting at 7:00 A.M., hauling be restricted to a certain number of loads; possibly 25 or 50 loads 

per week.  Restoration should be completed as quickly as possible.  He referred to stock piles.  He said 

the soil is very porous and there is not much runoff.  Restoration should be completed as quickly as 

possible.  

 2) Ray P. 65 Old Brooklyn Turnpike, said this has been an active gravel operation for years and I am not 

aware of any concerns.  As far as safety and truck traffic, children should not be in the road.   I will take 

care of the safety of my kids, he added.    There is all kinds of wildlife there. Don’t see an issue with it 

and I don’t have an objection with the operation.   

3) Annette Hayward spoke in favor of  the request.  She said children do not go out into the road,  I don’t 

see an issue here at all, she said.   

4)Mr. Santa Lucia  241 Scotland Road said he doesn’t see a problem with it, but added he would like to 

see the property restored as quickly as possible.   

5) Craig Dawson, who lives at 58 Old Brooklyn Turnpike, Windham, Ct , and who was unable to attend 

the meeting submitted a letter stating his objections to the project proposed by Mr. Edelman. He listed 

his concerns with children playing freely in the neighborhood and with wildlife that has started to return 

to the neighborhood.  He concluded by saying should approval be given the commission needs to 

consider the attached considerations. The welfare of our children and the entire neighborhood should 

be taken into consideration.   

6) Mrs. P.  Edelman said they have 3 children and she is very concerned with the safety of her children.  

She said she escorts her children to make sure they are safe.  Mr. Edelman said traffic will be very 

sporadic and doesn’t feel it is an issue.  

7) Art Ogden said he did a similar operation in the Town Columbia and there were no complaints, and 

there should be no issue with Mr. Edelman’s operation. 

Discussion then focused on truck traffic.Mr. Edelman said  each truck will carry approximately 15 yards 

of material.  ZEO Matt Vertefeuille said the Commission could limit the number of trucks per week.  Mr. 

Randall suggested limiting it to 50 loads a week.  Chair Stahl said the operation could be done in blocks 

of time, and the  Commission could limit the number of trucks and the number of loads of material.  

Chair Stahl said she sees no reason to limit the  truck traffic out on Route 14, as well as on  Back Road.  

Truck traffic on Old Brooklyn could be limited to 50 trucks per week.   

With respect to restoration, a detailed plan for restoration is spelled out in the proposed conditions. 

Operations are limited to the removal of the existing stockpiled material and grading the surface to a 

level condition.  Chair Stahl said the stock piles should be used upfirst. The commission debated about 



Saturday hours.  It was suggested limiting hours of operation on Saturday from 8:00 AM to 12:00 P.M. 

noon. 

The public hearing was closed. 

IV ) New Business: Steven Edelman - Gilead Enterprises - 96 Back Road & 40-44 Old Brooklyn Turnpike - 

Special Permit application for Earth Excavation in accordance with Sec. 75 

Paula Stahl moved to approve the application of Gilead Enterprises for a gravel operation at  96 Back 

Road & 40-44 Old Brooklyn Turnpike to permit the operation for one year, renewable by the 

Commission, with the following conditions: 

1)All operations shall comply with Section 75 of the Windham Zoning Regulations. 

2)Prior to the commencement of operations, the permittee shall notify the ZEO of the date operations 

will commence. 

3)Operations are permitted, excluding holidays observed by Windham Town Hall, as follows: 

96 Back Road property (with access from Route 14):  site work, screening and hauling between 7AM and 

5PM on weekdays. The ZEO may grant up to 5 variations to this schedule to allow additional hours for 

site work, screening and hauling, and on  Saturday between 8AM and noon.40 Old Brooklyn Turnpike 

property (with access from Back Road):  site work, screening and hauling between 7AM and 5PM on 

weekdays, haulingis limited to 50 truckloads per week, the ZEO may grant variations to this schedule to 

allow additional hours for site work, screening or hauling; hauling is permitted between 8AM and noon 

on a Saturday with a maximum of 3 truck loads. 

At both properties, crushing shall occur with limited times and hours; all large material shall be set aside 

for future crushing; crushing operation dates and hours shall be approved by the ZEO to occur at a time 

with the least disturbance to neighbors; permittee shall notify, by mail, properties within 400 feet of the 

site of the crusher; reasonable excavation to bury large stones is permitted with ZEO approval. 

4)Operations are limited to the removal of the existing stockpiled material and grading the surface to a 

level condition, 

5)The site shall be restored as follows: 

Within 30 days of the commencement of operations, a written restoration plan shall be submitted to 

theZEO for his approval describing the restoration of areas at each location  as stockpiles are removed to 

finish grade, with a goal of restoring individual areas of the site over the course of operations as soon as 

reasonably possible. 

Restoration shall be  by spreading subsoil and topsoil at a minimum depth of four (4) inches and seeded 

with a suitable perennial ground cover and maintained until the area is stabilized, the area is to be limed 

and fertilized as appropriate; seeding to be done between April 15 and June 15 or between August and 

October 15. 

6)The permittee shall maintain the vegetative buffer along the perimeter of the property for a depth of 

100 feet from the property line on Back Road. 

7)Proper measures shall be taken to minimize nuisance from dust, noise, vibration and flying debris. 



8)There shall be no blasting. 

9) The permittee shall post a cash bond in the amount of $2,500 per unrestored acre to insure the 

faithful performance of the work, said bond shall be retained by the Town for a further period of time of 

one (1) year to assure the correction of any damage which may result from wash outs, landslides and/or 

unsuccessfully stabilized vegetation.  After one year, if the Town is satisfied that the work has been 

completed as  required, the bond shall be returned, otherwise the bond shall remain in full force and 

effect. 

10)The permittee shall provide monthly reports to the ZEO on the yards hauled and truck trips per 

property. 

11)The property owner shall be held accountable for all contractors and haulers using the site. 

Claire Lary seconded the motion.  There was no further discussion.  The motion passes 3-0-0. 

Commissioner Jean Chaine resumed his seat on the commission. 

V)   Reports from ZEO Vertefeuille – there was no report 

VI)  Update on the Plan of Conservationand Development – Chair Stahl reported that the Town Council 

voted favorably to proceed with the consultants. 

VII) Miscellaneous -Planner Finger said Cumberland Farms is in the process of seeking relief from the Zoning 

Regulations on the maximum size of a free-standing sign.  They want to replace the existing 39 Square 

foot sign  and 24” LED number with a 45 square foot sign. Planner Finger said he will research the 

regulations. It will be necessary for the applicant to seek variances f from the Zoning Board of Appeals.   

Jean Chaine explained that the commission upgraded the sign regulations not that long ago, and this 

proposed sign would definitely not conform to the regulations. He asked if it would be appropriate for a 

member of the  P&Z Commission to attend the ZBA meeting.  The Commission agreed that it would be 

appropriate for this commission to send a letter to the ZBA outlining their concerns.  

VII) Adjourn The meeting was adjourned at 9:06 P.M. 

Lillian Murray, Clerk 

 

 


